
 

BOLTON MANCHESTER ROCHDALE STOCKPORT TRAFFORD 

BURY OLDHAM SALFORD TAMESIDE WIGAN 
 
Please note that this meeting will be livestreamed via www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk, please speak to a  
Governance Officer before the meeting should you not wish to consent to being included in this recording. 

 
 
 

AGMA EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
1.   Apologies  

 
 

2.   Chairs Announcements and Urgent Business  
 

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  
 
 

To receive declarations of interest in any item for discussion at the 
meeting. A blank form for declaring interests has been circulated with 
the agenda; please ensure that this is returned to the Governance & 
Scrutiny Officer at least 48 hours before the meeting. 
 

1 - 4 

4.   Minutes of the AGMA Executive Board meeting held on 26 June 2020  
 

To consider the approval of the minutes of the AGMA Executive Board 
meeting held on 26 June 2020. 
 

5 - 10 

5.   Greater Manchester Spatial Framework - Timetable  
 

Report of Salford City Mayor, Paul Dennett, Portfolio Lead for Housing, 
Homelessness and Infrastructure. 
 

11 - 22 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DATE: Friday, 31st July, 2020 
 

TIME: At the rise of the GMCA meeting 
 

VENUE: This meeting will be held virtually via Microsoft Teams and will 
be live-streamed for public viewing. 
 

  

Public Document

http://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/


2 
 

 
Membership 2020/21 

 
 

District Member Substitute Member 
 

Bolton David Greenhalgh (Con) Martyn Cox Con) 
 

Bury Eamonn O’Brien (Lab) Tariq Tamoor (Lab) 
 

Manchester Richard Leese (Lab) Bev Craig (Lab) 
 

Oldham Sean Fielding (Lab) Arooj Shah (Lab) 
 

Rochdale Allen Brett (Lab) Sara Rowbotham (Lab) 
 

Salford Paul Dennett (Lab) John Merry (Lab) 
 

Stockport Elise Wilson (Lab) Tom McGee (Lab) 
 

Tameside Brenda Warrington (Lab) Bill FairFoull (Lab) 
 

Trafford Andrew Western (Lab) Catherine Hynes (Lab) 
 

Wigan David Molyneux (Lab) Keith Cunliffe (Lab) 
 

 
 

For copies of papers and further information on this meeting please refer to the website 
www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk.  Alternatively, contact the following 

Governance & Scrutiny Officer: Governance & Scrutiny 
  

 
 

This agenda was issued on 23 July 2020 on behalf of Julie Connor, Secretary to the  
Greater Manchester Combined Authority, Churchgate House, 56 Oxford Street, 

Manchester M1 6EU 
 

 



 1 

AGMA Meeting on 31 July 2020 
 

Declaration of Councillors’ interests in items appearing on the agenda 
 
NAME:  ______________________________ 
 

Minute Item No. / Agenda Item No. Nature of Interest Type of Interest 
 

 
 
 

 Personal / Prejudicial /  

Disclosable Pecuniary 

 
 
 

 Personal / Prejudicial /  

Disclosable Pecuniary 

 
 
 

 Personal / Prejudicial /  

Disclosable Pecuniary 

 
 
 

 Personal / Prejudicial /  

Disclosable Pecuniary 

 
 
PLEASE NOTE SHOULD YOU HAVE A PERSONAL INTEREST THAT IS PREJUDICIAL IN AN ITEM ON THE AGENDA, YOU SHOULD LEAVE THE ROOM FOR THE DURATION OF THE 
DISCUSSION & THE VOTING THEREON. 

 
 
 
 

 

P
age 1

A
genda Item

 3



 2 

QUICK GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

This is a summary of the rules around declaring interests at meetings. It does not replace the Member’s Code of Conduct, the full description can be found in 
the GMCA’s constitution Part 7A.  

Your personal interests must be registered on the GMCA’s Annual Register within 28 days of your appointment onto a GMCA committee and any changes to 
these interests must notified within 28 days. Personal interests that should be on the register include: 

 Bodies to which you have been appointed by the GMCA 

 Your membership of bodies exercising functions of a public nature, including charities, societies, political parties or trade unions. 

You are also legally bound to disclose the following information called DISCLOSABLE PERSONAL INTERESTS which includes: 

 You, and your partner’s business interests (eg employment, trade, profession, contracts, or any company with which you are associated) 

 You and your partner’s wider financial interests (eg trust funds, investments, and assets including land and property).  

 Any sponsorship you receive. 

FAILURE TO DISCLOSE THIS INFORMATION IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE 

STEP ONE: ESTABLISH WHETHER YOU HAVE AN INTEREST IN THE BUSINESS OF THE AGENDA 

If the answer to that question is ‘No’ – then that is the end of the matter. If the answer is ‘Yes’ or Very Likely’ then you must go on to consider if that personal 
interest can be construed as being a prejudicial interest.  

STEP TWO: DETERMINING IF YOUR INTEREST PREJUDICIAL? 

 
A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest: 

 where the well being, or financial position of you, your partner, members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association (people who 

are more than just an acquaintance) are likely to be affected by the business of the meeting more than it would affect most people in the area.  

 the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice 

your judgement of the public interest. 

 

 

P
age 2



 3 

FOR A NON PREJUDICIAL INTEREST  

YOU MUST 

 Notify the governance officer 

for the meeting as soon as you 

realise you have an interest 

 Inform the meeting that you 

have a personal interest and 

the nature of the interest 

 Fill in the declarations of 

interest form 

TO NOTE:  

 You may remain in the room 

and speak and vote on the 

matter  

 If your interest relates to a body 

to which the GMCA has 

appointed you to you only have 

to inform the meeting of that 

interest if you speak on the 

matter. 

FOR PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS  

YOU MUST 

 Notify the governance officer for the meeting as soon as you realise you have a prejudicial interest (before or during 

the meeting) 

 Inform the meeting that you have a prejudicial interest and the nature of the interest 

 Fill in the declarations of interest form 

 Leave the meeting while that item of business is discussed 

 Make sure the interest is recorded on your annual register of interests form if it relates to you or your partner’s 

business or financial affairs. If it is not on the Register update it within 28 days of the interest becoming apparent.  

YOU MUST NOT: 

 participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become aware of your disclosable pecuniary 

interest during the meeting participate further in any discussion of the business,  

 participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting 

 
 

P
age 3



T
his page is intentionally left blank



BOLTON MANCHESTER ROCHDALE STOCKPORT TRAFFORD 

BURY OLDHAM SALFORD TAMESIDE WIGAN 
 

MINUTES OF THE VIRTUAL MEETING OF THE ASSOCIATION OF GREATER MANCHESTER 
AUTHORITIES EXECUTIVE BOARD HELD ON 26 JUNE 2020 VIA MICROSOFT TEAMS 

 
 

PRESENT: 
 
Greater Manchester Mayor  Andy Burnham (In the Chair) 
Greater Manchester Deputy Mayor Baroness Bev Hughes 
Bolton      Councillor David Greenhalgh  
Bury     Councillor David Jones 
Manchester    Councillor Richard Leese 
Oldham    Councillor Sean Fielding 
Rochdale     Councillor Allen Brett 
Salford     City Mayor Paul Dennett 
Stockport     Councillor Elise Wilson 
Tameside    Councillor Brenda Warrington  
Trafford    Councillor Andrew Western 
Wigan      Councillor David Molyneux 
 
IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
Rochdale    Councillor Janet Emsley 

 
OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE: 
 
GMCA – Chief Executive  Eamonn Boylan 
GMCA - Deputy Chief Executive Andrew Lightfoot 
GMCA – Monitoring Officer  Liz Treacy 
GMCA - Treasurer   Steve Wilson 
Bolton     Tony Oakman 
Bury      Geoff Little 
Manchester    Joanne Roney 
Oldham    Carolyn Wilkins 
Rochdale    Steve Rumbelow 
Salford     Jim Taylor  
Tameside     Steven Pleasant 
Wigan     Alison McKenzie-Folan 
Office of the GM Mayor  Kevin Lee 
TfGM     Steve Warrener 
      Mike Renshaw 
GMCA     Simon Nokes 
GMCA     Julie Connor 
GMCA     Sylvia Welsh 
GMCA     Nicola Ward 

 
 

 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



2 

 

 
AGMA 05/20  APOLOGIES  

 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That apologies be received and noted from Councillor Jenny Bullen 
(Wigan). 
 
 

 

AGMA 06/20  APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR TO THE AGMA EXECUTIVE BOARD  
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That the GM Mayor, Andy Burnham be appointed as Chair of the AGMA 
Executive Board under Section 9.1 of the AGMA Constitution. 
 
 

 

AGMA 07/20 APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRS TO THE AGMA EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
That Councillors Richard Leese, David Greenhalgh and Brenda Warrington be 
appointed as Vice Chairs to the AGMA Executive Board under Section 9.1 of the 
AGMA Constitution. 
 
 

AGMA 08/20 AGMA APPOINTMENTS AND NOMINATIONS 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 

 1. That the appointments from local authorities to the AGMA Executive Board for 
2020/21 be noted as follows: 

 

District 
 

Member Substitute Member 

GMCA Andy Burnham - GM Mayor  

Bolton David Greenhalgh (Con) Martyn Cox (Con) 

Bury Eamonn O’Brien (Lab) Tamoor Tariq (Lab) 

Manchester Richard Leese (Lab) To be confirmed 

Oldham Sean Fielding (Lab) Arooj Shah (Lab) 

Rochdale Allen Brett (Lab) Sara Rowbotham (Lab) 

Salford Paul Dennett (Lab) John Merry (Lab) 

Stockport Elise Wilson (Lab) Tom McGee (Lab) 

Tameside Brenda Warrington (Lab) Bill Fairfoull (Lab) 

Trafford Andrew Western (Lab) Catherine Hynes (Lab) 

Wigan David Molyneux (Lab) 
 

Keith Cuncliffe (Lab) 

 

Page 6



3 

 

 
2. That the appointments from GM Local Authorities to the Police and Crime 

Panel 2020/21 be noted as follows.  
 

District 
 

Member Substitute 

Bolton Nadim Muslim (Con) Martyn Cox (Con) 

Bury David Jones (Lab) Richard Gold (Lab) 

Manchester Nigel Murphy (Lab) To be confirmed 

Oldham Steve Williams (Lab) To be confirmed 

Rochdale Janet Emsley (Lab) To be confirmed 

Salford David Lancaster 
(Lab) 

Sharmina August (Lab) 

Stockport Amanda Peers (Lab) Tom McGee (Lab) 

Tameside Alison Gwynne (Lab) Laura Boyle (Lab) 

Trafford Graham Whitham 
(Lab) 

Mike Freeman (Lab) 

Wigan Kevin Anderson (Lab) Paula Wakefield (Lab) 

Co-opted member Majid Hussain To be confirmed 

Co-opted member Angela Lawrence To be confirmed 

 
3. That it be noted that the appointment of the current 2 co-opted members 

to the Police and Crime Panel will expire in December 2021. 
 
4. That the appointments from GM Local Authorities to the Police & Crime 

Steering Group 2020/21 be noted as follows: 
 

District 
 

Member 

Bolton Nadim Muslim (Con) 

Bury David Jones (Lab) 

Manchester Nigel Murphy (Lab) 

Oldham Steve Williams (Lab) 

Rochdale Janet Emsley (Lab) 

Salford David Lancaster (Lab) 

Stockport To be confirmed 

Tameside Alison Gwynne (Lab) 

Trafford Mike Freeman (Lab) 

Wigan Kevin Anderson (Lab) 

 
5. That the appointments from GM Local Authorities to the GM Health 

Scrutiny Committee 2020/21 be noted as follows: 
 

District 
 

Member Substitute Member 

Bolton Mark Cunningham 
(Con) 

Mudasir Dean (Con) 

Bury Stella Smith (Lab) Joan Grimshaw(Lab) 

Page 7



4 

 

Manchester Eve Holt (Lab) Julie Reid (Lab) 

Oldham Shoab Akhtar (Lab) Colin McLaren (Lab) 

Rochdale Ray Dutton (Lab) Patricia Sullivan (Cons) 

Salford Margaret Morris (Lab) Sammie Bellamy (Lab) 

Stockport Keith Holloway (Lib 
Dem) 

Wendy Wild (Lab) 

Tameside Stephen Homer (Lab) Teresa Smith (Lab) 

Trafford Sophie Taylor (Lab) Anne Duffield (Lab) 

Wigan John O’Brien (Lab) Ron Conway (Lab) 

 
6. That the appointment of 10 members, nominated by the GM Local 

Authorities plus Planning and Housing Portfolio Lead, to the Planning and 
Housing Commission for 2020/21 be approved as follows: 

 

District 
 

Member 

GMCA Portfolio Lead Paul Dennett (Lab) 

Bolton Toby Hewitt (Con) 

Bury Clare Cummings (Lab) 

Manchester Susan Richards (Lab) 

Oldham Hannah Roberts (Lab) 

Rochdale Linda Robinson (Lab) 

Salford Derek Antrobus (Lab) 

Stockport To be confirmed 

Tameside Ged Cooney (Lab) 

Trafford James Wright (Lab) 

Wigan Terence Halliwell (Lab) 

 
7. That the nominations by GM Local Authorities to the Statutory Functions 

Committee 2020/21 be agreed as follows: 
 

District 
 

Member Substitute Member 

Bolton Martyn Cox (Con) Stuart Haslam (Con) 

Bury Jane Black (Lab) David Jones (Lab) 

Manchester Bernard Stone  (Lab) To be confirmed 

Oldham Norman Briggs (Lab) Mohammed Alyas (Lab) 

Rochdale Janet Emsley (Lab) Susan Smith (Lab) 

Salford Stephen Coen (Lab) Anne- Marie Humphreys 
(Lab) 

Stockport Kate Butler (Lab) Tom McGee (Lab) 

Tameside Leanne Feeley (Lab) Mike Smith (Lab) 

Trafford Liz Patel (Lab) Mike Freeman (Lab) 

Wigan Paul Prescott (Lab) Bill Clarke (Lab) 

 
8. That the appointment of 9 members, nominated by the GM Local 

Authorities to the GM Pensions Fund Management Panel for 2020/21 be 
approved as follows: 

Page 8



5 

 

 

District 
 

Member 

Bolton Diane Parkinson (Con) 

Bury Joan Grimshaw (Lab) 

Manchester Paul Andrews (Lab) 

Oldham Abdul Jabbar (Lab) 

Rochdale Shaun O’Neill (Lab) 

Salford Michele Barnes (Lab) 

Stockport John Taylor (Lab) 

Trafford Alan Mitchell (Con) 

Wigan Keith Cunliffe (Lab) 
 

9. That it be noted that Tameside MBC as the Lead Authority managing the 
GM Pensions Fund will appoint its own member. 

 
10. That the appointment of Councillor Janet Emsley (Rochdale) to the Halle 

Board for 2020/21 be approved.  
 

11. That the appointment of the Chief Executive Officer, GMCA & TfGM to the 
Halle Board for 2020/21 be approved.  

 
12. That the appointment of Councillor Roy Sharpe (Salford) to the People’s 

History Museum Board for 2020/21 be approved.  
 
11. That it be noted that Councillor Eddie Moores (Oldham) was appointed to 

the Christie Hospital NHS Foundation Trust – Council of Governors in 
2019/20 for a three year term of office. 

 
 

AGMA 09/20 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 There were no declarations of interest in relation to any item on the agenda.  
 
 

AGMA 10/20 POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME PANEL – ARRANGEMENTS AND POLITICAL BALANCE 
 
Liz Treacy, GMCA Monitoring Officer introduced a report which set out the amended 
arrangements for the Police, Fire and Crime Panel following the approval of the 
Greater Manchester Combined Authority (Fire and Rescue Functions) (Amendment) 
Order 2020 (the Order).  This has now expanded the remit of the panel to scrutinise 
the Greater Manchester Fire & Rescue Service and would include the appointment of 
additional Local Authority representatives. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 

 1. That the amended Panel Arrangements, at Appendix 1 of the report, be agreed, 
to take effect after the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (Fire and Rescue 
Functions) (Amendment) Order 2020 comes into force. 

Page 9



6 

 

 
2. That the amended Panel Arrangements be referred to the individual Greater 

Manchester constituent councils for approval. 
 
 

AGMA 11/20 AGMA BUDGET FINAL OUTTURN REPORT 2019/20 
 
Councillor David Molyneux, Portfolio Lead for Resources introduced the AGMA Budget 
Final Outturn Report for 2019/20. 
 
RESOLVED /- 
 
1. That the report and the AGMA final revenue outturn for 2019/20 be noted. 

 
2. That the position of reserves in 2019/20 as detailed in the report be noted. 

 
3. That it be noted that there would be a further AGMA Budget Final Outturn 

Report at the next meeting of the AGMA Executive Board. 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 10



 

  

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGMA EXECUTIVE BOARD 
 
Date:  31 July 2020 
 
Subject: Greater Manchester Spatial Framework Timetable 
 
Report of: Paul Dennett, Portfolio Lead for Housing, Homelessness and Infrastructure 

Steve Rumbelow Portfolio Lead Chief Executive for Housing, Homelessness and 
Infrastructure 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To update members on the progress of the Greater Manchester Spatial Framework 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The AGMA Executive Board is requested to agree the proposed timeline. 
 
 
CONTACT OFFICERS: 
 
Anne Morgan, Head of Planning Strategy (anne.morgan@greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



 

Equalities Implications: 

The GMSF is a statutory plan which seeks to contribute to the achievement of sustainable 
development, delivering economic, social and environmental benefits together in a mutually 
reinforcing way. It is informed by an Integrated Appraisal which includes an Equalities assessment.  

 

Climate Change Impact Assessment and Mitigation Measures –  
 
The GMSF will provide the planning policy framework to support Greater Manchester’s ambition to be 
carbon neutral by 2038. 
 

 Legal Considerations: 

The legislative and constitutional requirements for the preparation of a joint Development Plan 
Document (DPD) in the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (“2004 Act”) and the Town and 
Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (“2012 Regulations”) have been 
complied with.   

 

The joint DPD will be submitted to the Secretary of State for independent examination (s20 of the 
2004 Act) along with the documents prescribed by Regulation 22 of the 2012 Regulations.  Prior to 
submission to the Secretary of State, the draft joint DPD must be published and representations 
invited, pursuant to Regulation 19 and Regulation 20 of the 2012 Regulations. 

 

If the draft joint DPD is not prepared in accordance with the 2004 Act and the 2012 Regulations, any 
subsequent attempt to adopt the plan would be susceptible to challenge. 

 

Financial Consequences – Revenue: 

There are no revenue consequences identified 

 

Financial Consequences – Capital: 

There are no capital consequences identified 

 

 
  
Comments/recommendations from Overview & Scrutiny Committee  

  

Any comments will be reported to the meeting 

 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS:  
 
 

Page 12



 

GMCA Greater Manchester Spatial Framework update - September 2019 
 
 

TRACKING/PROCESS  

Does this report relate to a major strategic decision  
 
 

Yes  
 

EXEMPTION FROM CALL IN 

Are there any aspects in this report which 
means it should be considered to be exempt 
from call in by the relevant Scrutiny Committee 
on the grounds of urgency? 

No 

GM Transport Committee Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

N/A 29 July 2020 

 
 
 
 
 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13

https://democracy.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/documents/b7839/GMCA%20SUPPLEMENTARY%20AGENDA%2027th-Sep-2019%2010.30%20Greater%20Manchester%20Combined%20Authority.pdf?T=9


 

1. THE STRATEGIC CONTEXT FOR THE GM SPATIAL FRAMEWORK 
 
1.1 The Greater Manchester Combined Authority and the 10 Local Authorities have developed 

a comprehensive set of policies and strategy documents that pave the way for inclusive and 
sustainable growth across the conurbation. These policies and strategies are targeted at 
growing the economy, reducing inequalities, and reducing carbon emissions. The plans 
themselves are long term in nature and therefore provide a blueprint against which GM can 
deliver over a longer time horizon.  

 
1.2 The “Future of GM” paper launched in January 2019 set out GM’s bold plans for the future 

in the face of uncertainty. At the time that uncertainty was caused by a range of factors 
including BREXIT. Despite Covid 19 and the ongoing uncertainty about the UK’s future trading 
relationships, the bold and ambitious vision for the city-region remains unchanged, although 
the actions prioritised to achieve some of those ambitions will inevitably have to change. 
Greater Manchester’s ambition to continue to be - and further develop our position as - a 
global city-region, with strong and prosperous communities throughout as well as a thriving 
and productive economy remains. Without a clear, long term cohesive set of plans it becomes 
almost impossible to implement and deliver initiatives that will achieve this ambition. 

 
2.  IMPACT OF COVID-19 
 
2.1 Covid 19 has had a major impact on the way people live and work over the shorter term with 

a high degree of uncertainty over its impact in the long term. In response the Government has 
been very clear that we need to positively plan for recovery. The Prime Minister made his 
Build, Build, Build announcement at the end of June 2020 setting a context for England as we 
recover from COVD-19 which emphasised:   

i. Planning reforms (relaxation of controls over changes of use to residential, demolition 
and rebuilding, fast track approvals for property owners wanting to extend); 

ii. The importance of high street revival;  
iii. The establishment of a ‘new’ cross-government strategy for the management and 

release of public sector land to support house building, growth, net zero carbon goals, 
environmental improvements; 

iv. Support for home building across England through £12 billion affordable homes 
programme (over next 8 years), First Homes pilot, £400m Brownfield Land Fund, 
£900m Getting Building Fund and the Home Building Fund to help smaller developers 
access finance for new housing developments will receive additional £450m boost.  

 
2.2           Later this year the government will publish their English Devolution & Local Recovery White 

paper articulating how government will partner with places to build sustainable economic 
recovery.  A National Infrastructure Plan and major reforms to the planning system are also 
expected later this year. 

 
2.3 The Chancellor’s Statement at the beginning of July sought to kick-start the UK’s economic 

recovery. A three point Plan for Jobs was unveiled to support, protect and create jobs, with 
total fiscal support amounting to £30 billion. Key announcements include a new £2bn 
scheme to create thousands of job placements for young people, a new job retention bonus 

Page 14



 

for employers who bring back furloughed staff, a temporary change to stamp duty and a 
temporary cut to VAT on food, accommodation and attractions to help the hospitality and 
tourism sector. In addition the Chancellor outlined investment in infrastructure with a focus 
on investing in green jobs totalling a new £3bn investment.  This will include a new ‘Green 
homes grant’ worth £2bn and funding of £1bn to improve the efficiency of public sector 
buildings, alongside a £50m fund ‘to pilot the right approach to decarbonise social housing.    
An Autumn Budget and Spending Review were confirmed. 

   
2.4 The recently announced Brownfield Land Fund is targeted at Combined Authorities and 

begins to help Greater Manchester address viability issues across the conurbation. The 
accompanying guidance makes it clear that councils must either have an up to date Local 
Plan or Spatial Framework in place, or an agreed plan with MHCLG for getting a Local Plan 
or Spatial Framework in place, to receive funding. Progressing the GMSF and agreeing the 
revised timetable is essential to access the Brownfield Land Fund 

 
2.5 The impact, therefore, needs to be reflected in the way that GM brings its strategies forward, 

rather than in the strategies themselves. Whilst the arrival of Covid 19 was not anticipated 
and its impact is very significant, our approach needs to be flexible to address unpredictable 
challenges that will arise over the course of any long-term strategy.  

 
2.6 The initial learning from the first wave of Covid 19 (recognising that the pandemic is an 

ongoing health and economic crisis) will be reflected in the 1 Year ‘Living with Covid Plan’ 
that will be published in early September 2020. The crisis has created job uncertainty while 
highlighting the need for flexible lifestyles.  Adapting to these challenges will require a more 
joined-up, versatile city region while delivering environmental outcomes and integrated 
health and social care. As Greater Manchester moves from the emergency and lockdown 
phases a clear sense of direction is needed, including a comprehensive plan to enable the 
successful restart and recovery of our economy and society, whilst recognising that the 
pandemic is an ongoing health and economic crisis in the immediate term.  

 
2.7 GM must build on opportunities, capitalise on positive changes made as part of the 

emergency response, and ensure Greater Manchester is focused on the right things, which 
can be delivered in timely and agile ways in response to the changeable requirements 
presented by Covid 19. The increase in walking and cycling has demonstrated that if 
conditions are right, sustainable modes of travel become the first choice for people travelling 
relatively short journeys; temporary re-allocation of road space has allowed for a re-
imagining of how towns and cities can operate.  GM needs to accelerate those things that it 
is confident address the issues arising from Covid 19, for example the need for affordable 
housing, as evidenced by the numbers of people on council waiting lists (currently almost 
100,000), particularly the 30,000 households identified as in priority need, whilst accepting 
that it will take time for an evidence base to form that can create a sound basis for materially 
altering our long term actions.  New population and household projections ordinarily would 
be expected in 2022 however ONS is suggesting 2023 to allow for Census outputs, and there 
is little value in commissioning new economic forecasts when the situation is so uncertain. 

 

Page 15



 

2.8 The industrial assets outlined in the Local Industrial Strategy are all still vitally important in 
GM’s economic future and contributing to driving UK growth. GM will still be required to 
address the climate emergency and the 2038 targets using a cocktail of responses that 
enables development but will force longer term sectoral change - so requiring challenging 
carbon emission targets on property development over a reasonable time frame (net zero by 
2028) will enable the market to adapt without being a barrier to development in the short 
term, as will the implementation of building retrofit measures.  

 
2.9 The crisis has reinforced some of our agendas and accelerated the need for action. For 

example, the switch to electric vehicles to reduce carbon emissions and improve air quality 
was inevitable, but the need for large scale adoption has never been greater given the likely 
short term increase in car usage due to safety concerns about using public transport. GM was 
also always going to need to deliver more truly affordable homes, but this need is likely to 
increase and delivery needs to be accelerated as the economic impact of Covid 19 is felt 
across the conurbation.  

 
3. THE GREATER MANCHESTER RESPONSE 
 
3.1 The approach to the delivery and implementation of our long term strategies and plans will 

need to recognise the potential for change that Covid 19 has and continues to create, and to 
maintain a level of flexibility to adapt while still providing a robust foundation on which to 
build and grow GM. Flexibility does not mean that GM pauses the adoption of bold long term 
strategies where there is no concrete evidence supporting a change in approach. It means 
we work in a different way to achieve our ambitions.  

 
3.2 While Covid 19 will impact on the way GM delivers its ambitions it may also make delivery of 

that ambition more challenging. There will be some difficult choices and tensions that need 
to be managed in an integrated and balanced way. That is why GM is setting out our bold 
“Living with Covid one year Recovery Plan”, that will set out near term actions that will start 
to address the stresses on the GM system that have been laid bare by Covid 19.  

 
3.3 The GMSF provides an important opportunity to create the conditions for inclusive economic 

growth, provide opportunities for provision of much needed homes and protect and enhance 
the natural environment. Progressing our long-term Spatial Framework is therefore more 
important than ever to make sure GM is on the right track to support our recovery, build back 
better and access the necessary investment for realising our ambitions. The GMSF is not 
being prepared in isolation. The Transport 2040 Delivery Plan will outline the transport 
interventions required to achieve the transport vision for the city region. At the same time, 
the consultation on the Clean Air Plan will seek views on how Greater Manchester plans to 
tackle air pollution which contributes to around 1,200 early deaths in Greater Manchester 
every year, harming our health and our economy. Each of these plans is part of a coherent 
set of measures that will seek to meet our overall objectives. 

 
4. THE IMPLICATIONS FOR THE GM SPATIAL FRAMEWORK 
 

Page 16



 

4.1 The need for a bold spatial plan to provide certainty and guide development, investment and 
infrastructure has never been stronger.   Government has sent a very strong message that 
Covid-19 should not be a reason to delay either the preparation of statutory plans or the 
determination of planning applications through the publication of emergency guidance to 
enable local authorities to continue to exercise their planning functions in a Covid-19 
compliant way. The Greater Manchester Spatial Framework – a Plan for Homes, Jobs and the 
Environment - is an essential building block of the city-region’s long term recovery. It will: 
provide a platform for development that enables us to attract central government funding to 
deliver affordable housing and infrastructure; enable utilities to deliver their infrastructure 
investment; give confidence to the private sector to grow and invest in GM; provide a route 
by which construction can proceed, providing short term economic stimulus; and provide a 
mechanism for accelerating the low carbon / sustainability agenda. In short, the GMSF will 
demonstrate what ‘building back better’ means spatially for Greater Manchester.  

 
4.2 Mechanisms for mitigating the possible long term impacts of the pandemic will be 

incorporated into GMSF and it will include a review of development trajectories particularly 
in the early years, a review of the approach to allocating land and a commitment to a radical 
early review if convincing evidence emerges post adoption. 

 
5. GM SPATIAL FRAMEWORK: - PROCESS TO DATE 
 
5.1 Consultation on the Revised Draft GMSF took place between January and March 2019. Over 

17,000 responses were received. Since the consultation closed, work has been underway to 
analyse the responses (a consultation summary report was published in October 2019), 
finalise the evidence base and prepare a further version of the plan. 

 
5.2 The original timeline for the next consultation on GMSF was to seek approval from the GMCA 

and the 10 districts immediately following the Mayoral and local elections planned for May 
2020 and to begin a 12 week consultation in August 2020. In the light of Covid19 emergency, 
these timescales were not achievable for 2 reasons: 

 Availability of resource to complete the work (staff absence/redeployment of 
district capacity/furloughing of consultant support)  

 Government guidance on social distancing and restriction on public gatherings   
  

5.3 Consideration has been given to the production of a new timeline, which is the subject of 
this report. This is based upon the GMSF continuing as a joint Development Plan Document 
(DPD) of the 10 Greater Manchester Local Authorities, as the necessary amendments to the 
Spatial Development Strategy (SDS) Regulations have not yet been made by the Government.  

 
6. REVISED GMSF TIMELINE 
 
6.1 There have been two previous consultations on GMSF (2016 and 2019). The next consultation 

will be the ‘Publication stage’, a formal consultation on the draft joint DPD which it is intended 
to submit to the Secretary of State for examination, pursuant to Reg. 19 of the Local Planning 
Regulations. The decision to publish the draft joint DPD is an Executive decision for the  GM 
local authorities. 

Page 17



 

 
6.2 At the end of the consultation period, the draft joint DPD and all representations received 

are then sent to the Secretary of State (the “Submission stage”) pursuant to Reg. 22 of the 
Local Planning Regulations.  Submission is likely to happen in summer 2021 and requires 
approval of each of the 10 Full Councils of the GM local authorities.  Whilst anyone can make 
a representation on any point, only those pertaining to the 4 tests of soundness will be taken 
into account by the Inspector(s). 

 
6.3 The national planning policy framework suggests that a local planning authority should 

submit a plan for examination which it considers is sound, namely that it is: 
a) Positively prepared – providing a strategy which, as a minimum, seeks to meet the 
area’s objectively assessed needs; and is informed by agreements with other authorities, 
so that unmet need from neighbouring areas is accommodated where it is practical to 
do so and is consistent with achieving sustainable development; 
b) Justified – an appropriate strategy, taking into account the reasonable alternatives, 
and based on proportionate evidence; 
c) Effective – deliverable over the plan period, and based on effective joint working on 
cross-boundary strategic matters that have been dealt with rather than deferred, as 
evidenced by the statement of common ground; and 
d) Consistent with national policy – enabling the delivery of sustainable development in 
accordance with the policies in the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

6.4 This version of the GMSF will be the third draft plan produced. It will be the plan that AGMA 
will recommend to the Greater Manchester local authorities to submit to the Secretary of 
State. As such, GMSF 2020 will be taken to each local authorities Cabinet/Executive for 
approval for Publication stage and each Full Council for approval in October/November 2020 
for the Submission stage. Although representations are invited at Publication stage, these are 
then submitted to the Secretary of State along with the draft DPD and considered at the 
Examination in Public.  If major new issues arise there would need to be further consultation. 

 
6.5 The Publication plan needs to be supported by a robust evidence base and meet legal 

requirements. Work has continued on the preparation of the evidence base and it is 
anticipated that this will be largely complete by the end of July 2020.  

 
6.6 The revised timeline (Appendix 1) proposes an 8 week consultation on the Publication draft 

starting in November 2020. The timeline assumes in broad terms that, following the collation 
of the evidence to inform the plan and the completion of the required Integrated Appraisal 
work, Districts will be asked to formally approve the plan in September/October 2020.  Upon 
completion of the consultation on the Publication draft in late 2020/early 2021, a post-
consultation report will be prepared and then the plan will be submitted to the Secretary of 
State for Examination in June 2021.  It is anticipated that the plan will be ready for adoption 
at some point in 2022 (depending on the timetabling of the Examination in Public by the 
Planning Inspectorate). 
 

6.7 In producing the revised timeline three key issues have been taken into account: 

 Impact of the current Covid 19 on Greater Manchester’s future strategy (Section 2) 

Page 18



 

 Risks to the proposed timetable  (Section 7) 

 Ability to consult meaningfully in a Covid compliant world (section 8) 
 

7. RISKS TO THE TIMETABLE 
 
7.1 There is a strong commitment from all districts and the GMCA to progress the GMSF as quickly 

as possible given its importance in supporting Greater Manchester’s recovery from Covid 19. 
 
7.2 It is proposed that work continues to complete the evidence base and draft GMSF 2020 for 

publication in November 2020 given the importance of bringing the plan forward to provide a 
basis for sustainable development, helping to tackle the housing crisis, support investment and 
coordination of development. However, there are risks which could impact on this that could 
delay the GMSF. 

 
7.3 The most obvious is a second spike in Covid 19 either nationally or locally. This could affect: 

 the ability to complete all of the work needed if staff and consultant support is affected 
(either by staff absence or redeployment / furlough); 

 the timescales needed to respond to the evidence and the ability to consult 
meaningfully/fairly if the region/country is in lockdown. 

 
7.4 Mitigation measures including local outbreak management plans will be in place and these will 

be taken into account as GM develops the plan and our consultation strategies.  
 
7.5 Alongside this there is a further risk that evidence being concluded now presents challenges to 

the plan requiring the need for further dialogue within Greater Manchester, with neighbouring 
boroughs or statutory consultees which cannot be completed within the timeframe for a 
November publication. 

 
7.6 Evidence collated to date for the GMSF will continue to be reviewed in the light of available 

economic information as far as is possible. In terms of housing growth, Government has 
restated its commitment to delivering 300,000 homes pa by the mid 2020’s in its 2019 
manifesto.  

 
7.7 A Planning White Paper/Planning Bill looking at reform of the planning system is anticipated in 

the summer. Additionally, Government is reviewing the Local Housing Need methodology, with 
a consultation anticipated in the summer. The Secretary of State indicated in his planning 
statement in March 2020 that whilst the Government is seeking to deliver 300,000 homes pa, 
there may be some weighting to redistribute growth to urban areas. It is unlikely therefore that 
the LHN for Greater Manchester will reduce from the current figure of around 10,500 homes 
pa.  

 
7.8 As this is a situation which can change very quickly, reports will be brought to future meetings 

to update members on the current situation. 
 
8.      CONSULTING IN A COVID COMPLIANT WORLD 
 

Page 19



 

8.1 The government has been clear that the challenge posed by Covid 19 is not a sufficient reason 
to delay local plan preparation. Equally however, all members of society are required to 
adhere to guidance to help combat the spread of coronavirus (Covid 19). The guidance has 
implications for how the public are engaged and the ability of the districts to comply with 
policies including those set out in their Statements of Community Involvement.  
 

8.2 Work is underway in the districts to identify activities in Statements of Community 
Involvement which are inconsistent with current Covid 19 guidance. This could include, for 
example, the holding of face-to-face community events or the provision of physical documents 
for inspection in public buildings. 
 

8.3 However, effective community engagement must be promoted by means which are 
reasonably practicable. Government guidance strongly encourages the use of online 
engagement methods which could include; 

• virtual exhibitions,  
• digital consultations, 
• video conferencing,  
• social media and online chat functions 

 
8.4 Reasonable steps need to be taken to ensure sections of the community that don’t have 

internet access are involved and consider alternative and creative ways to achieve this. This 
could include;  

• engaging sections of the community, that do not have internet access, through 
representative groups rather than directly; 

• targeting those most affected by proposals; 
• using existing networks; 
• allowing individuals to nominate an advocate to share views on their behalf; 
• Providing telephone information lines; and 
• Providing timed face-to-face information sessions for community 

representatives (maintaining social distancing). 
 

8.5 Different scenarios will be developed dependent on the level of social distancing in place at 
the time the publication is undertaken. 

 
 

9. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
9.1  Recommendations are found at the front of the report 
  

Page 20



 

  

 

 

 

 
 

 APPENDIX 1 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
GREATER MANCHESTER SPATIAL FRAMEWORK – PROPOSED TIMETABLE 

 
 
 

 

Jun-20 Jul-20 Aug-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Nov-20 Dec-20 Jan-21 Feb-21 Mar-21 Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21 Dec-21 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Aug-22 Sep-22

Plan Adopted

Plan Approval period

GMSF Roadmap @ 1st July 2020

K
e

y
 M

il
e

s
t
o

n
e

s

G
M

C
A

 G
o

v
e

r
n

a
n

a
c
e

EiP   (Timescale driven by independent Planning Inspectorate)

Jul-22

Consultation Period

Post- Consultation report production period

GM Approval of timeline

SoS submission

 

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Declarations of Interest
	4 Minutes of the AGMA Executive Board meeting held on 26 June 2020
	5 Greater Manchester Spatial Framework - Timetable

